
Civic Centre, Windmill Street, Gravesend Kent DA12 1AU 

 
 

 
 

Planning Delivery 
Committee 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Members of the Planning Delivery Committee of Gravesham Borough Council are summoned 
to attend a meeting to be held at the Civic Centre, Windmill Street, Gravesend, Kent on 
Wednesday, 23 November 2011 at 7.30 pm when the business specified in the following agenda 
is proposed to be transacted. 
 
 

 
S Kilkie 
Assistant Director (Communities) 
 
 

Agenda 
 

Part A 
Items likely to be considered in Public 

1. Apologies   

2. To sign the minutes of the previous meeting  (Pages 1 - 2) 

3. To declare any interests Members may have in the items contained on this 
agenda. When declaring an interest Members should state what their 
interest is.  

 

4. To considered whether any items in Part A of the agenda should be 
considered in private or those (if any) in Part B in public.  

 

5. Performance Update - Quarter Two 2011-12 (July 2011 to September 
2011)  

(Pages 3 - 16) 

 To provide Members of the Planning Delivery Committee with a report on 
the progress made by the council in delivering the Areas of Focus and 
Measures of Accountability (relevant to the committee) as set out within 
the Corporate Business Plan 2011-15.   
 

 

Public Document Pack



6. Corporate Register of Partnerships –Annual Review and Scrutiny of 
PartnershipsCorporate Register of Partnerships –Annual Review and 
Scrutiny of Partnerships  

(Pages 17 - 34) 

 To inform Members of the Planning Delivery Committee of the council’s 
involvement in partnerships that are within the remit of the Committee 
and to provide Members with details of the revised process for 
scrutinising partnerships, in order for them to undertake a review of the 
partnerships that are within the remit of the Committee.   
 

 

7. Gravesham LDF: Growth Scenarios and Core Strategy Consultation   

 Principal Planners Wendy Lane and Tony Chadwick will be present to 
answer Member’s questions on this process. Please refer to the 
document ‘Have Your Say on the Future October 2011’ previously 
circulated. This document can also be found on the following link.  
http://localplan.gravesham.govhttp://localplan.gravesham.gov.uk/consult.t
i  
 

 

8. Any other business which by reason of special circumstances the Chair is 
of the opinion should be considered as a matter of urgency.  

 

9. Exclusion   

 To move, if required, that pursuant to Section 100A (4) of the Local 
Government Act 1972 that the public be excluded from any items 
included in Part B of the agenda because it is likely in view of the nature 
of business to be transacted that if members of the public are present 
during those items, there would be disclosure to them of exempt 
information as defined in Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act. 
  
 

 

 Part B Items likely to be considered in Private  
 
 
 
Members 
 
Cllr Lee Croxton (Chair) 
Cllr Peter Rayner (Vice-Chair) 
 
Councillors: Valerie Ashenden 

Harold Craske 
Jane Cribbon 
Brian Sangha 
Makhan Singh 
Michael Snelling 
Robin Theobald 
Michael Wenban 
 

 
Substitutes: Lesley Boycott 

Colin Caller 
Glen Handley 
Rosemary Leadley 
John Loughlin 
Derek Shelbrooke 



 
 
 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



1 

Planning Delivery Committee 
 

Tuesday, 13 September 2011                    7.30pm 
 

 
Present: 
 
Cllr Lee Croxton (Chair) 
Cllr Peter Rayner (Vice-Chair) 
 
Cllrs: Valerie Ashenden 

Jane Cribbon 
Brian Sangha 
Makhan Singh 
Michael Snelling 
Robin Theobald 
Michael Wenban 
 

Note:  Cllr Richard Smith was also in attendance 
 
Sue Lord Service Manager (Regeneration and Policy) 
Tony Chadwick Principal Planning Officer 
Gerrard Shaw Conservation & Design Officer 
Doug Finch Scrutiny Officer 
  
  
  
6. Apologies  
 
An apology for absence was received from Cllr Harold Craske. 
 
7. Minutes  
 
The Minutes of the meeting held on 18 July 2011 were signed by the Chair. 
 
8. Declarations of Interest  
 
No declarations of interest were made. 
 
9. Corporate Business Plan 2011/15  
 
Members considered the extract from the Plan that outlined the four key areas of focus that 
fall within the remit of the Committee.  The Committee had some concerns on the measures 
of accountability which the Service Manager (Regeneration & Policy) said she would take on 
board and seek further guidance. 
 
It was agreed that the report be noted and Members would retain Appendix one for future 
reference. 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 2Page 1



Planning Delivery Committee 13.09.2011 

2 

10. Performance Update - Quarter One 2011/12  
 
The Committee felt that with the introduction of new measures of accountability it was a bit 
early in the process to comment.  However, they believed that in the future annual as well as 
quarterly figures would be useful for comparison purposes. 
 
It was agreed that the report be noted. 
 
11. Conservation  
 
The Service Manager (Regeneration & Policy) introduced the report.  The Borough has 23 
conservation areas, just over half of which are within the urban or suburban parts of 
Gravesend. 
 
Appraisals and Management Plans for all Urban Conservation Areas have been adopted by 
the Council and are available on the Council’s website.  Those for the rural areas are 
nearing completion and will go through the adoption process in 2011/12. 
 
The Committee asked about public consultation and Member involvement in the adoption 
process.  The Service Manager (Regeneration & Policy) said that consultation on proposals 
for conservation areas was a legal requirement and all residents in the proposed area were 
notified of the dates for the meetings at which the proposals would be discussed.  Public 
notices were also prominently displayed.  All Councillors have the opportunity to put forward 
their views. 
 
The Conservation & Design Officer said that the quality of the consultation detailed in the 
Appraisal and Management Plans was invaluable to the Council at appeals. 
 
It was agreed that the officers be commended for the clarity of the report and that the report 
be noted. 
 
12. Draft National Planning Policy Framework  
 
The Principal Planning Officer gave a short presentation on the proposed changes in the 
draft compared to the current position.  Whilst the planning system needed simplification 
there was concern that the draft was an over simplification with a number of the elements in 
the draft unclear, with potentially serious consequences for the Borough. 
 
The Committee felt that under the Coalition Government’s Localism Agenda, local Councils 
should be allowed to determine the number and location of developments to meet the needs 
of their authorities and residents.  As such the current draft fails to provide sufficient flexibility 
to deal with local circumstances, in this case the impact of the Green Belt on site availability. 
 
It was agreed that the report be noted and the Planning Delivery Portfolio holder write to the 
Department of Communities and Local Government raising the concerns outlined in 
paragraph 4.5 of the report and at this Committee meeting. 
 
 Close of meeting  
 
The meeting ended at 9.01 pm. 
 

Page 2



 
 

Planning Delivery Committee – 23 November 2011 
Performance Update - Quarter Two 2011-12 (July 2011 to September 2011) 

 
Classification:   Part 1 – Public  
   
Key Decision: No 
  

Gravesham Borough Council 

Report to: Planning Delivery Committee 

Date: 23 November 2011 

Reporting officer: Kevin Burbidge, Director (Business) 

Subject: Performance Update - Quarter Two 2011-12  
(July 2011 to September 2011) 
 

Purpose and summary of report:  

To provide Members of the Planning Delivery Committee with a report on the progress made 
by the council in delivering the Areas of Focus and Measures of Accountability (relevant to 
the committee) as set out within the Corporate Business Plan 2011-15. 
 

Recommendations: 

Members are requested to review the information contained within the report appendix and 
refer any concerns they may have to the Planning Delivery Cabinet Portfolio Holder for 
further consideration. 
 

1. Introduction 

1.1 The council’s Corporate Business Plan 2011-15 sets out the 18 Areas of Focus 
which form the framework for the direction of the council during the four year 
period.  The success and impact of the council in delivering the objectives within 
each Area of Focus is measured periodically through formal performance reports.  

1.2 The implications arising from this report are summarised in appendix one.  

 

2. Performance Data report 

2.1 Appendix two provides the an update for Members on performance in the second 
quarter of 2011-12 within the four key Areas of Focus and the five Measures of 
Accountability that fall within the remit of Planning Delivery Committee. The 
appendix is set out as follows: 

 

 

Agenda Item 5Page 3



 
 

Planning Delivery Committee – 23 November 2011 
Performance Update - Quarter Two 2011-12 (July 2011 to September 2011) 

2.1.1 Areas of Focus Update – this provides an update for Members on work 
that has been undertaken by the council between July 2011 and 
September 2011 in relation to each of the key areas of focus within the 
Corporate Business Plan, relevant to the committee. 

2.1.2 Measures of Accountability – this provides Members with details of 
performance from April 2011 to June 2011 against the measures of 
accountability set out in the Corporate Business Plan. Information on 
performance over the last quarter is presented both graphically and in 
tabular form. The table also provides a ‘traffic light system’ to enable 
Members to assess how the council is performing against the target it has 
set for each measure. A commentary on performance has been provided 
where considered necessary. 

2.2 Members are requested to review and discuss the information contained within 
the appendices. 

 

3. Executive Performance Summary 

3.1 Key areas of improvement/good performance: 

3.1.1 The number of affordable homes delivered within the borough (CBP 14) is 
above target.  Completions during Quarter 2 included 56 x 1 and 2 bed 
Extra Care apartments at Watling Court, Ifield Way, Gravesend and 5 
council-owned bungalows at Henry Gardens, Northfleet. 

3.1.2 The measures relating to the footfall within the town centre (CBP 29) and 
through TownCentric (CBP 30) are both currently showing good 
performance against target. 

3.2 Potential areas for review: 

3.2.1 The number of additional homes provided (CBP 13) in the first half of 
2011-12 is lower than the target that has been set but is an improvement 
on the half-yearly performance of the previous financial year.  The target 
that has been set for the council is based upon the South East Plan which 
sets out the need for Gravesham to deliver 465 dwellings per year 
between 2006 and 2026.  Due to the current economic climate, leading to 
a lack of finance for developers, the number of new builds has reduced.  It 
is worth noting that Government has indicated its intention to abolish the 
South East Plan and its housing targets via the Localism Bill currently 
making its way through Parliament.  Work on the Local Development Core 
Strategy, currently the subject of public consultation, is promoting lower 
housing targets within the plan period (2011-2031), which will in due 
course feed through to this particular indicator.  This will also impact upon 
the CBP 14 targets referred to in 3.2.1 above. 

 

 

4. Background Papers 

4.1 There are no background papers pertaining to this report. 

 

Page 4



 
 

Planning Delivery Committee – 23 November 2011 
Performance Update - Quarter Two 2011-12 (July 2011 to September 2011) 

IMPLICATIONS                                                                                                             APPENDIX 1  

Legal  There are no legal implications arising from the decisions taken as a result of this 
report.  

Finance and 
Value for 
Money  

Quarterly reporting and review of the council’s progress against its strategic 
priorities provides an important opportunity to influence performance.   Such action 
will also help to ensure that council resources are being directed in an efficient and 
effective manner and to the benefit of the Gravesham community. 

Risk 
Assessment 

The specific targets set for each of the measures of accountability are designed to 
be realistic but challenging to the council; resultantly there are likely to be instances 
when target performance may not be achieved.  Quarterly reporting and review of 
performance against the measures of accountability and the council’s progress 
against its strategic priorities enables managers and Members to identify risks to 
the achievement of the council’s priorities, enabling action to be taken to mitigate or 
manage risks and/or influence council performance at the earliest opportunity.     

Equality 
Impact 
Assessment 

Screening for Equality Impacts 

Question Answer Explanation 

a. Does the decision 
being made or 
recommended 
through this paper 
have potential to 
cause adverse impact 
or discriminate against 
different groups in the 
community? 

No The report is intended to 
provide an update on the 
council’s performance in 
delivering the priorities 
for the community as set 
out in the Corporate 
Business Plan 2011-15. 

b. Does the decision 
being made or 
recommended 
through this paper 
make a positive 
contribution to 
promoting equality? 

No The report is intended to 
provide an update on the 
council’s performance in 
delivering the priorities 
for the community as set 
out in the Corporate 
Business Plan 2011-15. 

c. What steps are you 
taking to mitigate, 
reduce, avoid or 
minimise the impacts 
identified above? 

N/A -- 

In submitting this report, the Chief Officer doing so is confirming that they have 
given due regard to the equality impacts of the decision being considered, as 
noted in the table above 

 

Corporate 
Business 
Plan 

The Corporate Business Plan 2011-15, which sets out the council’s strategic 
priorities and measures of accountability considered in this report, forms part of the 
council’s Policy Framework. 

 

 

 

Page 5



 
 

Planning Delivery Committee – 23 November 2011 
Performance Update - Quarter Two 2011-12 (July 2011 to September 2011) 

IMPLICATIONS                                                                                                             APPENDIX 1  

Crime and 
Disorder 

The full Corporate Business Plan document includes two key areas of focus relating 
specifically to crime and anti-social behaviour; ‘Keeping Gravesham Safe’ and 
‘Raising young people’s awareness of crime and anti-social behaviour issues’.  
Whilst the work of the Planning Delivery Committee is not directly related to 
Community Safety, there may be aspects of the Committee’s work that will need to 
take community safety issues into consideration. 

 

Page 6



Page 7



Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



 
 

Planning Delivery Committee – 23 November 2011  
Corporate Register of Partnerships –Annual Review and Scrutiny of Partnerships 

 
Classification:   Public  
   
Key Decision: No 
  

Gravesham Borough Council 

Report to: Planning Delivery Committee 

Date: 23 November 2011 

Reporting officer: Kevin Burbidge, Director (Business) 

Subject: Corporate Register of Partnerships –Annual Review and 
Scrutiny of Partnerships 

Purpose and summary of report:  

To inform Members of the Planning Delivery Committee of the council’s involvement in 
partnerships that are within the remit of the Committee. 

To provide Members with details of the revised process for scrutinising partnerships, in order 
for them to undertake a review of the partnerships that are within the remit of the Committee. 

 

Recommendations: 

Members are requested to: 

1. Review the information contained within appendix two to this report (Planning Delivery 
- Register of Partnerships). 

2. Utilise the scrutiny of partnerships process outlined at appendix three in order to 
consider and challenge each of the partnerships within the remit of the Committee. 

 

1. Introduction 

1.1 Members will be aware that the council has had in place a Corporate Register of 
Partnerships for a number of years.  The Register is intended to provide a central 
public record of partnerships in which the council is involved.   

1.2 The council’s Working in Partnership Framework states that the register should be 
reviewed on an annual basis and reported to Cabinet for approval; the latest 
version of the Register was approved by Cabinet on 10 October 2011. 

1.3 Attached at appendix two is an extract from the Corporate Register of 
Partnerships, identifying the specific partnerships that contribute to the delivery of 
the council objectives that fall within the remit of the Planning Delivery Committee. 

Agenda Item 6Page 17



 
 

Planning Delivery Committee – 23 November 2011  
Corporate Register of Partnerships –Annual Review and Scrutiny of Partnerships 

1.4 The current partnerships that directly relate to the work of the Planning Delivery  
are as follows: 

• Dartford and Gravesham Economic Board 

• Gravesend Regeneration Delivery Board 

• Gravesend Town Centre Initiative 

• Kent Downs Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB) Partnership 

• Thames Gateway Kent Partnership 

1.5 The implications of this report on the council are summarised in appendix one to 
the report.  

 

2. Scrutiny of Partnerships 

2.1 During 2010-11, a pilot programme involving Members in reviewing the council’s 
key partnerships was trialled using the Policy Overview Committees.  Based on 
the findings of this pilot, the recent change in the committee structure and the 
annual review of the Corporate Register of Partnerships, the opportunity has been 
taken to examine the way in which Members are involved in scrutinising key 
partnerships.  At its meeting on 10 October 2011, Cabinet approved a revised 
approach to scrutinising partnerships utilising the Cabinet Committees; this 
approach is set out at appendix three. 

2.2 The scrutiny process has four stages for reviewing each partnership as outline 
below: 

2.2.1 No further action required – after reviewing the partnership entry within 
the Register of Partnerships, Members are happy that the partnership is 
achieving its objectives and working towards the overall goals of the 
council. 

2.2.2 Further information required - after reviewing the partnership entry 
within the Register of Partnerships, Members are generally happy with the 
information they have been provided, but there are a number of minor 
questions/queries regarding the partnership.  Where officers are unable to 
provide clarification at the Committee meeting, Members request further 
information to be provided to the Committee in writing outside of the 
meeting. 

2.2.3 Discussion at next Committee - Officers have provided the committee 
with additional information as requested at 2.2.2 (above) but Members still 
have further questions/queries.  Members request that the Lead Officer 
attend the next committee meeting so that a formal discussion can take 
place specifically in relation to the partnership by the committee as a 
whole.  

2.2.4 Recommend a formal review - Following further discussion at committee, 
Members still have some concerns regarding the partnership.  Members 
are not confident that the partnership is delivering against the expected 
outcomes or have other concerns such as in relation to governance 
arrangements. The recommendation is for a formal review of the 
partnership to be undertaken, with the Committee agreeing the way 
forward for the review (for example, by way of a sub-group of Members). 

Page 18



 
 

Planning Delivery Committee – 23 November 2011  
Corporate Register of Partnerships –Annual Review and Scrutiny of Partnerships 

2.3 Members of the Committee are requested to use the flowchart at appendix three 
to commence the process of scrutinising the partnerships that fall within the remit 
of the Committee. 

 

3. Background Papers 

3.1 There are no background papers pertaining to this report. 

 

Page 19



 
 

Planning Delivery Committee – 23 November 2011  
Corporate Register of Partnerships –Annual Review and Scrutiny of Partnerships 

IMPLICATIONS                                                                                                             APPENDIX 1  

Legal  There are no legal implications arising from the Corporate Register of Partnerships 
report. 

As a requirement of the council’s Working in Partnership Framework, all potential 
partnership opportunities are formally considered b y the Monitoring Officer to 
ensure that the legal aspects of proposals are taken into account prior to entering 
into a new partnership.   

Finance and 
Value for 
Money  

There are no financial or value for money implications directly arising from the 
Corporate Register of Partnerships report.  The Register, however, does set out the 
council resources applied to partnership arrangements in place and the process for 
scrutinising the resources input into each partnership is provided for within the new 
process for reviewing partnerships as set out within this report. 

Partnership working can present financial and value for money savings to the 
council.  The council’s Working in Partnership Framework requires all potential 
partnership opportunities to be formally considered by the Section 151 Officer to 
ensure that the financial aspects of all proposals are taken into account prior to 
entering into a new partnership.   

Risk 
Assessment 

Partnership working is becoming more and more prevalent in the work of the 
council and the efficient and effective delivery of services and corporate objectives.  
It is important that the council maintains comprehensive information regarding 
partnership working to enable effective consideration of the council’s involvement in 
partnerships as a contribution to the achievement of corporate objectives and also 
verify the risk and governance arrangements in place to ensure the council’s 
interests are properly protected. 

Equality 
Impact 
Assessment 

Screening for Equality Impacts 

Question Answer Explanation 

a. Does the decision 
being made or 
recommended 
through this paper 
have potential to 
cause adverse impact 
or discriminate against 
different groups in the 
community? 

No The report and appendix 
simply provides a register 
of all partnerships the 
council is involved in. 

b. Does the decision 
being made or 
recommended 
through this paper 
make a positive 
contribution to 
promoting equality? 

No The report and appendix 
simply provides a register 
of all partnerships the 
council is involved in. 

c. What steps are you 
taking to mitigate, 
reduce, avoid or 
minimise the impacts 
identified above? 

 

N/A -- 

Page 20



 
 

Planning Delivery Committee – 23 November 2011  
Corporate Register of Partnerships –Annual Review and Scrutiny of Partnerships 

IMPLICATIONS                                                                                                             APPENDIX 1  

In submitting this report, the Chief Officer doing so is confirming that they have 
given due regard to the equality impacts of the decision being considered, as 
noted in the table above 

 

Corporate 
Business 
Plan 

The register demonstrates how each partnership contributes to the achievement of 
the council’s overall Corporate Business Plan objectives.  This should be a key 
factor in evaluating any existing or potential new partnerships for the council. 

Crime and 
Disorder 

Whilst there are no specific crime and disorder issues relating to the items 
presented before the Planning Delivery Committee, the complete Register of 
Partnerships includes information regarding the Community Safety Partnership and 
G-Safe. 

 

Page 21



Page 22

This page is intentionally left blank



GRAVESHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL 

Corporate Register of 
Partnerships 

October 2011 
 
 
 
 

Extract for the Planning Delivery Committee 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

A summary of the partnerships the council is currently involved in as at October 2011 

Appendix Two Page 23



Gravesham Borough Council           - 2 - 
Register of Partnerships – October 2011 

Introduction 

The council maintains a comprehensive register of its partnerships that is reviewed on an annual basis.  The 
council defines a partnership as “an agreement between the Council and one or more independent bodies 
to work together to achieve one or more objectives”.  

In addition to this, the council also splits the partnership register into ‘Significant’ and ‘Key other partnerships’.  
In order for a partnership to be classified as significant it must meet the following definition: 

“a partnership for which there is a council resource provision of £10,000 or greater or one that is 
fundamental to the delivery of an area of focus within the council’s Corporate Business Plan.  Without 
this effective partnership therefore, the delivery of Gravesham Borough Council’s key areas of focus 
would not occur”. 

All of the partnerships listed within this register are as follows: 

Page Ref.  Significant? 

- 3 - Dartford and Gravesham Economic Board     

- 4 - Gravesend Regeneration Delivery Board ����    

- 5 - Gravesend Town Centre Initiative ����    

- 6 - Kent Downs Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB) Partnership ����    

- 8 - Thames Gateway Kent Partnership ����    

- 9 - Glossary of Terms     
 

Page 24



Gravesham Borough Council           - 3 - 
Register of Partnerships – October 2011 
 

Name of Partnership Dartford and Gravesham Economic Board 
(formerly the Kent Thameside Economic Board) 

Responsible Officer Kevin Burbidge, Director (Business) 

Cabinet Portfolio Holder(s) Councillor John Burden, Leader of the Executive 

 
 
The Dartford and Gravesham Economic Board will replace the Kent Thameside Economic Board.  The 
governance and final arrangements for the Dartford and Gravesham Economic Board are in the process of 
being established so it is not yet possible to complete a full entry within the Corporate Register of Partnerships 
for this. 

Page 25



Gravesham Borough Council           - 4 - 
Register of Partnerships – October 2011 
 

Name of Partnership Gravesend Regeneration Delivery Board 

Responsible Officer S Sangha, Assistant Director (Special Projects) 

Cabinet Portfolio Holder(s) Councillor John Burden, Leader of the Executive 

Statutory Status Non-statutory partnership 

Aims and objectives of 
partnership 

Regeneration within Gravesham, with a focus on the Heritage and 
Transport Quarters 

Expected outcomes Promotion - and lead where appropriate  -of major projects such as the 
Heritage & Transport Quarters and an enabling role with partners on other 
regeneration schemes which include sites such as Clifton Slipways, 
Hospital ‘M’ Block and the old King Street Cinema site. 

Links to GBC Key Areas of 
Focus 

14 – Ensuring a sustainable high quality built and green environment and  
        safeguarding our cultural heritage 
15 – Working with partners to develop high quality transport infrastructure 

GBC Resources 
(financial, officer, assets etc) 

A budget of £20,000 is available for the Delivery Board in 2011-12.   
Officer time from the Leader of the Executive, Chief Executive and 
Assistant Director. 
The council does not provide any specific assets to the Partnership 

Partnership membership Gravesham Borough Council, Kent County Council, Homes & 
Communities Agency (HCA), a Community Representative, up to three 
representatives from multiple retailers and one local independent. 

Governance arrangements Set out in “Gravesham Regeneration Delivery Board Role and Operation” 
January 2009”. 

Financial reporting 
arrangements and timeframe 
for reporting 

The finances for the Board are monitored through the council’s financial 
management system. 

Risk Assessment Delivery of regeneration could be at risk without a delivery vehicle such as 
this. 

Performance monitoring 
arrangements and details of 
formal review of partnership 
arrangements. 

Projects are monitored through a Risk Register where appropriate. 

Date Partnership 
Created / Approved 
by Cabinet 

January 2009 Date Partnership 
Terminates 
(if applicable) 

N/A 

 

����    Significant partnership     Other partnership 
 

Page 26



Gravesham Borough Council           - 5 - 
Register of Partnerships – October 2011 
 

Name of Partnership Gravesend Town Centre Initiative (TCI) 

Responsible Officer Simon Hookway, Service Manager (Economic Development) 

Cabinet Portfolio Holder(s)(s) Councillor John Burden, Leader of the Executive 

Statutory Status Non-statutory partnership 

Aims and objectives of 
partnership 

Maintaining a healthy town centre economy, together with its 
physical, environmental and social well-being 

Expected outcomes Engagement of town centre businesses in improvements in the town 
centre; co-ordination of town centre activity; a programme of town centre 
events, including Christmas promotion, Splash of Colour/South & South 
East in Bloom. 

Links to GBC Key Areas of 
Focus 

13 – Driving the economic development of the borough 

GBC Resources 
(financial, officer, assets etc) 

• A gross budget of approximately £78,000 (net of £36,000 when 
sponsorship income accounted for) is available for the council to draw 
on for TCI activity in 2011-12. 

• Officer time from the Leader, Assistant Director, Service Manager 
(Economic Development) and Town Centre Manager. 

• There are no shared assets. 

Partnership membership Gravesham Borough Council, St George’s Shopping Centre, Marks & 
Spencer, Boots The Chemists, St George’s Church, Kent County Council, 
Kent Police and other town centre businesses. 

Governance arrangements TCI Sponsors Group meets at two monthly intervals with daily 
management through Gravesham Borough Council.   

Financial reporting 
arrangements and timeframe 
for reporting 

Annual budget agreed through Gravesham Borough Council’s normal 
budget setting process and monitored accordingly. 

Risk Assessment Activity is highly dependent on sponsorship from town centre businesses, 
is monitored tightly against budget. 

Performance monitoring 
arrangements and details of 
formal review of partnership 
arrangements. 

Performance monitored and reported to the TCI Sponsors Group.  Formal 
review of arrangements would need to take place through Gravesham 
Borough Council as lead partner in consultation with other partners. 

Date Partnership 
Created / Approved 
by Cabinet 

Created in the early 1990s. Date Partnership 
Terminates 
(if applicable) 

N/A 

 

����    Significant partnership     Other partnership 
 

Page 27



Gravesham Borough Council           - 6 - 
Register of Partnerships – October 2011 
 

Name of Partnership Kent Downs Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB) Partnership 

Responsible Officer Sue Lord, Service Manager (Regeneration and Policy) 

Cabinet Portfolio Holder(s)(s) Councillor Lee Croxton, Leader Member for Planning Delivery 

Statutory Status Statutory Partnership 

Aims and objectives of 
partnership 

To secure the conservation and enhancement of the Kent Downs AONB 
whilst supporting the social and economic wellbeing of its communities. 
Objectives: (1) to help realise the strategic vision for the Kent Downs 
AONB, and to oversee the Kent Downs AONB Management Plan. (2) to 
provide advice to those of its members with statutory responsibilities for 
the effective management of the Kent Downs AONB. 

Expected outcomes (1) a secure and more independent Kent Downs AONB Partnership. 
(2) a Kent Downs AONB Partnership which is recognised as ‘The 

Champion’ for the AONB. 
(3) the delivery of a well-supported Kent Downs AONB Management Plan 

through partners and focussed Kent Downs AONB led projects. 

Links to GBC Key Areas of 
Focus 

14 – Ensuring a sustainable high quality built and green environment and  
        safeguarding our cultural heritage 
GBC has a statutory duty placed upon it to act jointly, in partnership with 
other local authorities to prepare and review an AONB Management Plan 
under the Countryside and Rights of Way Act 2000.  GBC also has a 
statutory ‘duty of regard’ placed on it towards the purposes of the AONB in 
all of its functions – the AONB Management Unit assists with this work in 
partnership with the other member local authorities. 

GBC Resources 
(financial, officer, assets etc) 

Financial: annual contribution of £4,157 (Memorandum of Agreement has 
agreed 2% inflation each year).  This matches all other AONB local 
authorities and is around 1.4% of the AONB Management Unit’s £300 000 
core budget; 75% coming from Natural England. 
Human Resources: 1 officer attendance (twice yearly) at the AONB Joint 
Advisory Committee (JAC).  Required to comment on consultation 
documents and take forward to adoption as appropriate with GBC. 
Use of Buildings: the Kent Downs AONB Partnership does not require 
use of GBC offices for the JAC Meetings.  JAC Meetings are held within 
the AONB at various locations at no additional cost to GBC. 

Partnership membership Public: Natural England, Ashford Borough Council, Canterbury City 
Council, Dover District Council, Gravesham Borough Council, Kent County 
Council, London Borough of Bromley, Maidstone Borough Council, 
Medway Council, Sevenoaks District Council, Shepway District Council, 
Swale Borough Council, Tonbridge & Malling Borough Council, Kent 
Association of Local Councils, Environment Agency. 
Private: Country Land and Business Association, National Farmers Union. 
Voluntary: Action with Communities in Rural Kent. 

Governance arrangements Terms of Reference: 
The Kent Downs AONB Partnership has a set of Terms of Reference 
agreed by the JAC covering: (1) Remit; (2) Membership; (3) Power to co-
opt; (4) Voting rights; (5) Election of Chairman; (6) Frequency of Meetings; 
(7) Secretariat; (8) Agenda. 
Constitution: 
The Kent Downs AONB Partnership constitutes: 
(1) JAC; (2) Executive Group; (2) AONB Forum; (4) Sub-committees; (4) 
AONB Management Unit. 
Memorandum of Agreement/Understanding: 
A 6 year Memorandum of Agreement (to be replaced by a Memorandum 
of Understanding) was signed by all partner local authorities and Natural 
England. 

Page 28



Gravesham Borough Council           - 7 - 
Register of Partnerships – October 2011 
Financial reporting 
arrangements and timeframe 
for reporting 

Financial Reporting Timeframe: 
A report is prepared by the AONB Management Unit Director on the 
financial position which is presented as an item at each JAC meeting 
(twice yearly). 
Budget Monitoring/Management: 
The JAC agrees the annual budget and the priorities for the Kent Downs 
AONB.  Each partner may ask for further details should it wish. 

Risk Assessment Risk Assessment: 
The Kent Downs AONB Management Unit has a Business Continuity Plan 
and a Risk Register which covers the risks of the Unit and, to some extent, 
the Partnership (available on request). 
Risk to Council: 
Failure to meet its statutory duties including the ‘duty of regard’ to the Kent 
Downs AONB. 
Mitigation: 
The Kent Downs AONB Partnership has been successful at meeting its 
aims and objectives, therefore it has not been necessary to take mitigation 
action. 

Performance monitoring 
arrangements and details of 
formal review of partnership 
arrangements. 

Performance Monitoring Arrangements: 
Regular reports are prepared and presented to the Kent Downs AONB 
Partnership JAC and Executive, which meet twice yearly and four times 
yearly respectively.  The Business Continuity Plan is reviewed annually 
and presented to the JAC and Executive.  A new monitoring arrangement 
is currently being agreed nationally with Natural England. 
Review of Partnership Arrangements: 
In 2002, a review of staffing and governance was undertaken.  In 2008 
(following the review of the AONB Management Plan), a review of the 
Terms of Reference was undertaken.  The AONB Management Unit has 
commissioned an internal audit of its finances and management 
arrangements. 

Date Partnership 
Created / Approved 
by Cabinet 

14 July 1997 Date Partnership 
Terminates 
(if applicable) 

N/A 

 

����    Significant partnership     Other partnership 
 

Page 29



Gravesham Borough Council           - 8 - 
Register of Partnerships – October 2011 
 

Name of Partnership Thames Gateway Kent Partnership 

Responsible Officer David Hughes, Chief Executive 

Cabinet Portfolio Holder(s)(s) Councillor Lee Croxton, Leader Member for Planning Delivery 

Statutory Status Non-statutory partnership 

Aims and objectives of 
partnership 

Strategic Regeneration of Thames Gateway Kent Area 

Expected outcomes Outcomes agreed by the Board within the approved Business Plan. 

Links to GBC Key Areas of 
Focus 

13 – Driving the economic development of the borough 
14 – Ensuring a sustainable high quality built and green environment and  
       safeguarding our cultural heritage 

GBC Resources 
(financial, officer, assets etc) 

• Meetings of the main board are attended by the Leader and Chief 
Executive.  Other officers are involved as required for input into the 
Multi Area Agreement. 

• Annual contribution by Gravesham Borough Council of £28,000. 
Assets 
The council does not provide any specific assets to the Partnership.  The 
partnership is based in Medway in a building owned by Medway Council. 

Partnership membership Department for Communities and Local Government (CLG), Kent County 
Council, Gravesham Borough Council, Medway Council, Swale Borough 
Council, Dartford Borough Council, Homes and Communities Agency 
(HCA), South East Economic Development Agency (SEEDA), Government 
office for the South East (GOSE), Environment Agency, private and 
voluntary sector representatives. 

Governance arrangements A constitution is in place. 

Financial reporting 
arrangements and timeframe 
for reporting 

Medway Council lead on finance with reports to the Board for budget 
setting, year-end and as appropriate. 

Risk Assessment No specific annual risk assessment is carried out. 

Performance monitoring 
arrangements and details of 
formal review of partnership 
arrangements. 

Monitoring reports are submitted as agreed by the board. 
The partnership is currently under review. 

Date Partnership 
Created / Approved 
by Cabinet 

2003 Date Partnership 
Terminates 
(if applicable) 

N/A 

 

����    Significant partnership     Other partnership 
 

Page 30



Gravesham Borough Council           - 9 - 
Register of Partnerships – October 2011 
 
 
 
 

To provide assistance to officers, Members and members of the public when reading the council’s 
Corporate Register of Partnerships, a Glossary of Terms has been developed to provide additional 
information about the meaning of some of the words included within the register. 
 

Term Used Meaning 

Business Continuity 
Plan 

A plan that sets out how an organisation will respond and manage business 
disruption in case of unforeseen events. 

Constitution A document which sets out the fundamental rules governing the conduct of the 
partnership.  It may also include details of the concept and structure of the 
partnership. 

Corporate Business 
Plan 

A document which sets out Gravesham Borough Council’s priorities for a period of 
years and provides details of the actions to be undertaken towards achieving those 
priorities. 

Memorandum of 
Understanding 
(MOU) 

A written document describing the roles and responsibilities of two (or more) parties 
on a particular venture.  An MOU is less formal than a contract, but is often signed 
by the parties involved to indicate their agreement to the principles contained in the 
MOU.  A MOU is sometimes a precursor to a formal agreement. 

Significant 
partnership 

A partnership for which there is a council resource provision of £10,000 or greater or 
one that is fundamental to the delivery of the goals and objectives of the Council’s 
corporate plan.  Without this effective partnership therefore, the delivery of 
Gravesham Borough Council’s key corporate goals would not occur 

Terms of Reference A document which describes the purpose and structure of a partnership along with 
basis for making future decisions and for confirming or developing a common 
understanding of the scope among stakeholders. 

 
 

Page 31



Page 32

This page is intentionally left blank



Scrutiny of Partnerships
- Proposed process for reviewing partnerships

PD 
Committee

P&PH 
Committee

Discussion at each Cabinet Committee to discuss the partnerships in more detail and 'scrutinise' as required.  
Potentially four options available to the Committees:

P&A 
Committee

B&P 
Committee

C&E 
Committee

Appendix Three

St
ag

e 
1

St
ag

e 
2

Partnerships relevant to each committee to then be reported formally to the Cabinet Committee

Annual Review of Corporate 
Register of Partnerships

Full Corporate Register report 
to Cabinet

STEP 1
Members review the 
information contained 
within the Partnership 
Register.  If Members 

STEP 2
Whilst Members are 
generally happy with 
the information they 
have been provided,

STEP 4
Following discussion 
at committee, 
Members still have 
some concerns 

STEP 3
Officers have provided 
the committee with 
additional information 
but Members still 

Stage 3

   The formal review of the Corporate Register of Partnerships is undertaken and presented to 
   Cabinet for formal approval.

   Each Cabinet Committee is provided with the relevant extract from the Corporate Register of 
   Partnerships, focussing on those partnerships that operate within the remit of the committee

   The Cabinet Committee has the opportunity to discuss and 'scrutinise' the information within 
   the Corporate Register of Partnerships and make recommendations to the Portfolio Holder as 

Stage 1

Stage 2

St
ag

e 
3

Register.  If Members 
are confident that the 
partnership is 
achieving its 
objectives and 
working towards the 
overall goals of the 
council - no further 
action required.

If there are still 
questions, move to 
step 2

have been provided,
there are a number of 
questions/queries 
regarding the 
partnership.  Where 
officers are unable to 
provide clarification at 
the Committee 
meeting, Members 
request further 
information to be 
provided to the 
Committee in writing 
outside of the 
meeting.

If Members still 
require further 
information move to 
step 3

some concerns 
regarding the 
partnership.  
Members are not 
confident that the 
partnership is 
delivering against the 
expected outcomes or 
have other concerns 
such as in relation to 
governance 
arrangements. The 
recommendation is 
for a formal review of 
the partnership to be 
undertaken; 
Committee agree to a 
way forward for the 
review (sub-group of 
Members etc). 

Findings of the formal 
review to be reported 
back to the Cabinet 
Committee.

but Members still 
have further  
questions/ queries.  
Members request that 
the Lead Officer 
attend the next 
committee meeting so 
that a formal 
discussion can take 
place specifically in 
relation to the 
partnership by the 
committee as a whole.

If Members are not 
confident in the 
information provided 
move to step 4

Page 33



Page 34

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 To sign the minutes of the previous meeting
	5 Performance Update - Quarter Two 2011-12 (July 2011 to September 2011)
	Performance Update - Quarter Two 2011-12 - Appendix Two

	6 Corporate Register of Partnerships ŒAnnual Review and Scrutiny of PartnershipsCorporate Register of Partnerships ŒAnnual Review and Scrutiny of Partnerships
	Corporate Register of Partnerships - Appendix Two
	Scrutiny of Partnerships - Appendix Three


